
 

Any person with a disability who requires accommodation in order to participate in this meeting should telephone Erin Anton at 
(909) 797-5117, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting in order to make a request for a disability-related modification or 
accommodation. 
 
Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to the Board of Directors after distribution of the workshop packet are 
available for public inspection during normal business hours at the District office located at 12770 Second Street, Yucaipa.  Meeting 
material is also be available on the District’s website at www.yvwd.dst.ca.us 

 
 

Notice and Agenda of a Board Workshop 
Tuesday, July 7, 2015 at 4:00 p.m. 

 

 

MEETING LOCATION: District Administration Building 
 12770 Second Street, Yucaipa 

 

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD: Director Ken Munoz, Division 1 
Director Bruce Granlund, Division 2 
Director Jay Bogh, Division 3 
Director Lonni Granlund, Division 4 
Director Tom Shalhoub, Division 5 

  

 

I. Call to Order 
II. Public Comments  At this time, members of the public may address the Board of Directors on matters within its 

jurisdiction; however, no action or significant discussion may take place on any item not on the meeting agenda.   
III. Staff Report 
IV. Presentations 

A. Overview of the California Drought and Yucaipa Valley Water District’s Action Plan Related 
to the State Water Resources Control Board Mandatory Restrictions to Achieve a 36% 
Reduction in Potable Urban Water Use [Workshop Memorandum No. 15-128 - Page 5 of 
150]  

B. Overview of the Proposed Bunker Hill Conjunctive Use Project [Workshop Memorandum 
No. 15-129 - Page 13 of 150] 

V. Capital Improvement Projects 
A. Status Report on the Construction of a 6.0 Million Gallon Drinking Water Reservoir R-12.4 

- Calimesa [Workshop Memorandum No. 15-130 - Page 19 of 150] 
B. Status Report on the Testing of Alternative Sludge Dewatering Equipment at the Wochholz 

Regional Water Recycling Facility [Workshop Memorandum No. 15-131 - Page 25 of 150] 
C. Status Report on the Installation of New Recycled Water Services and Recycled Water 

Pipelines Throughout the Service Area of the Yucaipa Valley Water District [Workshop 
Memorandum No. 15-132 - Page 26 of 150] 

D. Status Report on the Construction of an 8” Drinking Water Pipeline in Cedar Avenue, Adams 
Street, Adams Court and Comberton Street [Workshop Memorandum No. 15-133 - Page 
29 of 150] 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 1 of 150



Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop Page 2 
 
 

 

E. Status Report on the Installation of a 30” Drinking Water Pipeline and a 12” Drinking Water 
Pipeline in Second Street, Yucaipa [Workshop Memorandum No. 15-134 - Page 30 of 150] 

VI. Administrative Items 
A. Review of the Unaudited Financial Report for the Period Ending on June 30, 2015 

[Workshop Memorandum No. 15-135 - Page 32 of 150] 
B. Annual Posting of Delinquent Accounts to the Property Tax Rolls of San Bernardino County 

and Riverside County [Workshop Memorandum No. 15-136 - Page 64 of 150] 
C. Approval of Amendment No. 2 to the Basin Monitoring Program [Workshop Memorandum 

No. 15-137 - Page 71 of 150] 
D. Adoption of Resolution No. 2015-xx Establishing the Appropriation Limit for Fiscal Year 

2015-16 [Workshop Memorandum No. 15-138 - Page 87 of 150] 
E. Professional Engineering Services Related to the Preparation of a Title 22 Report for the 

Recharge of Recycled Water at the Wilson Creek Spreading Basins [Workshop 
Memorandum No. 15-139 - Page 104 of 150] 

F. Prepayment of the Annual Unfunded Accrued Liability Contribution for the CalPERS 
Retirement Program [Workshop Memorandum No. 15-140 - Page 125 of 150] 

G. Overview of a Public Education and Outreach Program and the Draft Request for Proposals 
[Workshop Memorandum No. 15-141 - Page 129 of 150] 

VII. Director Comments 
VIII. Closed Session 

A. Conference with Real Property Negotiator(s) 
Property: Assessor’s Parcel Number(s): 0321-261-09 
Agency Negotiator:  Joseph Zoba, General Manager 
Negotiating Parties:  Richard and Shirley Ferguson  
Under Negotiation: Terms of Payment and Price 

B. Conference with Labor Negotiator (Government Code 54957.6) 
District Negotiator: Joseph Zoba, General Manager 
Employee Organization: IBEW Local Union 1436-YVWD Employees Association 

C. Conference with Labor Negotiator (Government Code 54957.6) 
District Negotiator: Joseph Zoba, General Manager 
Employee Organization: YVWD Supervisory Employees 

D. Conference with Labor Negotiator (Government Code 54957.6) 
District Negotiator: Joseph Zoba, General Manager 
Employee Organization: YVWD Management Employees (Exempt)  

IX. Adjournment  
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 2 of 150



 

Staff Report 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 3 of 150



 

Presentations 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 4 of 150



 

Workshop Memorandum 15-128

Date: July 7, 2015 

Subject: Overview of the California Drought and Yucaipa Valley Water District’s 
Action Plan Related to the State Water Resources Control Board 
Mandatory Restrictions to Achieve a 36% Reduction in Potable Urban 
Water Use 

 
On May 5, 2015, the State Water Resources Control Board (“SWRCB”) adopted emergency 
regulations to achieve a 25% statewide reduction in potable urban water use.  These stringent 
water use regulations will require the Yucaipa Valley Water District to achieve a 36% reduction 
from the amount of drinking water produced in 2013.  In order to achieve this level of water 
conservation, the Yucaipa Valley Water District will need to provide water based on the following 
water demand curve. 

 
 

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

350,000

400,000

450,000

500,000

T
ho

us
an

d 
G

al
lo

ns

Actual Water Consumption and Drought Regulatory Requirements

Potable Water Demand (kgal) Governor Brown Drought Compliance Goal

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 5 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-128  Page 2 of 8 

The chart above illustrates the peak difference between Governor Brown’s Drought Compliance 
Goal in 2014 at a 25% reduction, and in 2015 at a 36% reduction in potable water use based on 
the 2013 baseline period. 
 
To achieve Governor Brown’s Drought Compliance Goal of a 36% reduction in potable water use 
from the 2013 baseline period, the Yucaipa Valley Water District has initiated additional drought 
conservation programs and conducted community workshops to provide information to our 
customers. 
 
To achieve the 36% reduction, customers will need to immediately reduce the amount of water 
used for outdoor landscape purposes by 50% - 60%.   
 
The purpose of this agenda item is to discuss the ongoing and evolving implementation strategy 
for our community. 
 
 

Drought Status and Update 
 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 6 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-128  Page 3 of 8 

Latest Seasonal Assessment - During the past 14-days, above-median rainfall amounts 
were reported across portions of the Four Corners region, the central and southern Rockies, 
much of the Great Plains, the middle Mississippi and northern Ohio Valleys, the Great Lakes 
region, and the interior Northeast. For the upcoming three-month period (July-August-
September, or JAS 2015), most climate models favor above-median rainfall from eastern 
Arizona to west Texas, in connection with the seasonal Summer Monsoon. A one-category 
improvement is favored in this region. With El Niño now established across the tropical Pacific, 
there are enhanced chances of an active eastern Pacific hurricane season. Moisture from 
tropical systems may reach the Southwest CONUS, especially towards the tail end of this 
seasonal outlook. For most of the remainder of the West, however, drought is expected to 
persist and/or intensify, as is climatologically the case each summer. Drought is anticipated 
to develop across the lowlands of western Washington and nearby northwestern Oregon. 
Small pockets of residual drought across the Great Plains are forecast to be removed during 
the JAS season, largely due to passing frontal systems, and nocturnal thunderstorm clusters. 
Residual drought across the Northeast is also ripe for removal, due to the proximity of the 
summer storm track, and the overall historical tendency for above-median precipitation 
during the past 10-15 summers. Portions of the Ohio and Tennessee Valley have very recently 
experienced moderate drought conditions, as designated by the U.S. Drought Monitor. It is 
anticipated that these areas of increasing rainfall deficits and budding drought will be reversed 
and eliminated during this Outlook. Across most of the Southeast, above-normal 
temperatures and below-median precipitation is predicted for all time scales out to 90-days. 
Drought development is anticipated primarily across the Carolinas, though Georgia is another 
area that bears careful monitoring. Drought is expected to persist and/or intensify across 
southern Georgia and adjacent northern Florida, and a one-category improvement is 
anticipated in southern Florida, even though the traditional rainy season has been off to a 
slow and unimpressive start. Persistent trade winds are predicted to contribute to sufficient 
rainfall across the windward (generally, east-facing) slopes of the Hawaiian Islands, while 
drought development appears more likely across the leeward (generally, west-facing) slopes. 
During El Niño summers, there is a strong signal for unusual dryness across the Caribbean 
basin, and a reduction in Atlantic tropical cyclone activity. Therefore, current drought in 
eastern Puerto Rico is forecast to persist and/or intensify, while drought development is 
favored for the remainder of the Island.  

Forecaster: A. Artusa 

Next Seasonal Drought Outlook issued: July 16, 2015 at 8:30 AM EDT 
 

Source: http://www.cpc.ncep.noaa.gov/products/expert_assessment/sdo_summary.html  
 

 
The National Weather Service and the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration 
provides regular predictions for temperature and precipitation forecasts throughout the United 
States.  The following charts show the temperature and precipitation probability for the next 
month, as well as a compilation of future forecasts for temperature and precipitation. 
 
Temperature Forecast Legend: Orange/Red = Above Normal Temperatures 
     Blue = Below Normal Temperatures 
 
Precipitation Forecast Legend: Green = Above Normal Precipitation 
     Tan/Brown = Below Normal Precipitation 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 7 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-128  Page 4 of 8 

Temperature Probability 
July 2015 

Precipitation Probability 
July 2015 

United Stated Drought Monitor Illustration 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 8 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-128  Page 5 of 8 

Department of Water Resources - California Data Exchange Center 
Northern Sierra Precipitation 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 9 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-128  Page 6 of 8 

Department of Water Resources - California Data Exchange Center 
San Joaquin Precipitation 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 10 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-128  Page 7 of 8 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 11 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-128  Page 8 of 8 

 
 
El Niño and the California Drought 
 
While wetter-than-normal conditions in California are widely talked about as a typical El Niño 
impact, this signal is typically strongest in the January-March season (see images below). If the 
El Niño persists until then, there may be some relief from drought conditions. That relief may not 
come without consequence, however, as drenching rains on dry soil increase the risk of 
mudslides. Visit our Data Library for interactive maps indicating probability of above- or below-
average rainfall across the globe. 

 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 12 of 150



 

Workshop Memorandum 15-129

Date: July 7, 2015 

Subject: Overview of the Proposed Bunker Hill Conjunctive Use Project 

 
The Yucaipa Valley Water District operates a local conjunctive use project in the Yucaipa 
groundwater basins where the groundwater aquifer system is managed as an underground 
storage reservoir.  During wet years, when more surface water is available, surface water is stored 
underground by recharging the aquifers with surplus water.  The coordinated management of 
surface and groundwater supplies increases the yield of both supplies and enhances water 
reliability in an economic and environmentally responsible manner.   
 
The Yucaipa Valley Water District’s conjunctive use program is a significant way to diversify our 
water supply portfolio.  The benefits of our conjunctive use project are: 

 Operational flexibility for groundwater production; 
 Increased yield of the basin; 
 More efficient use of surplus surface water during wet years; 
 Better distribution of water resources; and 
 Increased reliability. 

 
On September 17, 2013, the San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District and the San 
Gorgonio Pass Water Agency conducted a joint board meeting that included a discussion about 
a proposed Bunker Hill Conjunctive Use Project.   
 
The purpose of this 
agenda item is to 
present and explore 
the concepts of 
conjunctive use and 
how these programs 
can improve the 
overall sustainability 
of the Yucaipa 
Valley Water District.  
 
 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 13 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-129  Page 2 of 5 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 14 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-129  Page 3 of 5 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 15 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-129  Page 4 of 5 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 16 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-129  Page 5 of 5 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 17 of 150



 

Capital Improvement Projects 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 18 of 150



 

Workshop Memorandum 15-130

Date: July 7, 2015 

Subject: Status Report on the Construction of a 6.0 Million Gallon Drinking 
Water Reservoir R-12.4 - Calimesa 

 
At the regular meeting on July 16, 2014, the Board authorized the solicitation of bids for the 
construction of a 6.0 Million Gallon R-12.4 Reservoir located on Singleton Road in Calimesa 
[Director Memorandum No. 14-060].  On November 19, 2014, the Board of Directors awarded the 
construction contract for the reservoir facility to Gateway Pacific Contractors [Director 
Memorandum No. 14-091].   
 

 
 
The purpose of this agenda item is to provide an update on the progress of the reservoir 
construction project.  

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 19 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-130  Page 2 of 6 

 
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 20 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-130  Page 3 of 6 

 
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 21 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-130  Page 4 of 6 

 

 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 22 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-130  Page 5 of 6 

 
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 23 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-130  Page 6 of 6 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 24 of 150



 

Workshop Memorandum 15-131

Date: July 7, 2015 

Subject: Status Report on the Testing of Alternative Sludge Dewatering 
Equipment at the Wochholz Regional Water Recycling Facility 

 
The Wochholz Regional Water 
Recycling Facility uses belt filters to 
remove liquids from the biosolids 
collected throughout the sewer 
treatment process.  The belt filter 
technology has been in use at the sewer 
treatment plant for over twenty years.  
The belt filters have proven to be a 
simple and reliable technology that has 
been easy to maintain with a long life.  
As this equipment has surpassed its 
useful life the District staff has noticed 
signs of metal fatigue and stress cracks 
in the equipment.  Therefore, we have 
started to process to evaluate other 
available technology to plan for the 
replacement of the existing belt 
presses. 
 
The District staff will be testing alternative dewatering equipment to further reduce maintenance, 
energy and hauling costs.  Pilot testing of potential equipment will provide an opportunity to 
validate the equipment performance and provide the operations staff members with first-hand 
knowledge about the overall operation and maintenance of the equipment. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 25 of 150



 

Workshop Memorandum 15-132

Date: July 7, 2015 

Subject: Status Report on the Installation of New Recycled Water Services and 
Recycled Water Pipelines Throughout the Service Area of the Yucaipa 
Valley Water District 

 
Over the past decade, the Yucaipa Valley Water District has been expanding the recycled water 
system to reduce the amount of potable water used by our community.  Currently the District uses 
only a portion of the total recycled water available for our community. 

 
 
The District staff is working closely with property owners to facilitate new service connections to 
the existing recycled water system.  The following map shows some of the targeted customers in 
the Yucaipa portion of our service area.  The red parcels indicate properties planning for a new or 
expanded recycled water connection.  The pink parcels are already connected to the recycled 
water system. 
 

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

T
ho

us
an

d 
G

al
lo

ns
 (

kg
al

)

Monthly Recycled Water Supply and Demand

Recycled Water Demand (kgal) Recycled Water Supply (kgal)

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 26 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-132  Page 2 of 3 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 27 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-132  Page 3 of 3 

In addition to new service connections, the District staff is working on a long-term plan to 
significantly expand the recycled water system as shown on the following map. 
 

 
 
During this workshop item, the District staff will provide an update on the status of our recycled 
water expansion efforts. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 28 of 150



 

Workshop Memorandum 15-133

Date: July 7, 2015 

Subject: Status Report on the Construction of an 8” Drinking Water Pipeline in 
Cedar Avenue, Adams Street, Adams Court and Comberton Street 

 
On February 4, 2015, the Board of Directors authorized the District staff to solicit construction bids 
for pipelines on Cedar Avenue, Adams Street, Adams Court and Comberton Street [Director 
Memorandum No. 15-013].  The new pipelines will replace existing 4-inch PVC, 6-inch steel and 
6-inch asphalt concrete leak-prone pipelines. 
 
The purpose of this agenda 
item is to provide an update 
on the status of the 
construction project. 
 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
Funding for this project will 
be from Water Division, 
Depreciation Reserves. 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 29 of 150



 

Workshop Memorandum 15-134

Date: July 7, 2015 

Subject: Status Report on the Installation of a 30” Drinking Water Pipeline and 
a 12” Drinking Water Pipeline in Second Street, Yucaipa 

 
At the regular board meeting 
on September 3, 2014 the 
Board of Directors authorized 
the District staff to solicit bids 
for the construction of a 30” 
drinking water conveyance 
pipeline and 12” drinking 
water pipeline in Second 
Street, Yucaipa [Director 
Memorandum No. 14-072].   
 
On March 18, 2015, the Board 
of Directors approved a 
Compensatory Mitigation 
Agreement with the California 
Department of Fish and 
Wildlife for the portion of 
pipeline crossing Wilson 
Creek [Director Memorandum 
No. 15-023]. 
 
The purpose of this agenda 
item is to provide an update 
on the status of the 
construction project. 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 30 of 150



 

 

Administrative Items

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 31 of 150



 

Workshop Memorandum 15-135

Date: July 7, 2015 

Subject: Review of the Unaudited Financial Report for the Period Ending on 
June 30, 2015 

 
The District staff has prepared the attached Unaudited Financial Report for the period ending on 
June 30, 2015.  A graphical summary of the current operating budget is provided below and 
detailed information follows as part of the monthly unaudited financial report.   

 

 

$0

$2,000,000

$4,000,000

$6,000,000

$8,000,000

$10,000,000

$12,000,000

$14,000,000

Fiscal Year 2015 YTD Revenues & Budget Targets

Water Division

Sewer Division

Recycled Water Division

Water Budget

Sewer Budget

Recycled Water Budget

$0

$2,000,000

$4,000,000

$6,000,000

$8,000,000

$10,000,000

$12,000,000

$14,000,000

Fiscal Year 2015 YTD Expenses & Budget Targets

Water Division

Sewer Division

Recycled Water Division

Water Budget

Sewer Budget

Recycled Water Budget

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 32 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-135  Page 2 of 32 

 

$0

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

$2,000,000

$2,500,000

$3,000,000

$3,500,000

Ju
l‐
1
4

A
u
g‐
1
4

Se
p
‐1
4

O
ct
‐1
4

N
o
v‐
1
4

D
ec
‐1
4

Ja
n
‐1
5

Fe
b
‐1
5

M
ar
‐1
5

A
p
r‐
1
5

M
ay
‐1
5

Ju
n
‐1
5

Water Division Monthly Expense Summary ‐ FY 2015

Debt & Capital Outlay

Administration

Public Works

Water Resources

$0

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

$2,000,000

$2,500,000

$3,000,000

$3,500,000

Ju
l‐
1
4

A
u
g‐
1
4

Se
p
‐1
4

O
ct
‐1
4

N
o
v‐
1
4

D
ec
‐1
4

Ja
n
‐1
5

Fe
b
‐1
5

M
ar
‐1
5

A
p
r‐
1
5

M
ay
‐1
5

Ju
n
‐1
5

Sewer Division Monthly Expense Summary ‐ FY 2015

Debt & Capital Outlay

Environmental Control

Administration

Sewer Treatment

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 33 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-135  Page 3 of 32 

 

Director Memorandum 15-0xx

Date: July 15, 2015 

Prepared By: Vicky Elisalda, Controller 
Peggy Little, Administrative Supervisor 

Subject: Unaudited Financial Report for the Period Ending on June 30, 2015 

Recommendation: That the Board receives and files the unaudited financial report as 
presented. 

 
The following unaudited financial report has been prepared by the Administrative Department for 
your review. The report has been divided into six sections to clearly disseminate information 
pertaining to the financial status of the District.  Please remember that the following financial 
information has not been audited. 
 

Cash Fund Balance Report 
[Detailed information can be found on page 7 to 8 of 32] 

 
The Cash Fund Balance Report provides a summary of how the total amount of funds maintained 
by financial institutions is distributed throughout the enterprise and non-enterprise funds of the 
District.  A summary of the report is as follows: 
 

Fund Source
Operating 

Funds
Restricted 

Funds
Total 

Funds
Water Division $8,855,979.53 ($70,883.44) $8,785,096.09
Sewer Division $14,427,472.75 ($6,300,712.61) $8,126,760.14
Recycled Water Division $3,091,421.34 $364,059.32 $3,455,480.66

Total $26,374,873.62 ($6,007,536.73) $20,367,336.89  
 
Most of the funds reflected in the Cash Fund Balance Report are designated for specific purposes 
and are therefore restricted, either by law or by District policy.   
 

Check Register  
[Detailed information can be found on pages 9 to 13 of 32] 

 
The check register lists each check processed during the month of June 2015.  The District 
processed 269 checks during the month of June for a total sum of $1,491,841.83.  All checks are 
reviewed by District staff for accuracy and completeness, and usually signed by the General 
Manager and one Director, but may be signed by two Directors. 
 
The Controller will make any check, invoice or supporting documentation available for review to 
any board member upon request.   
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 34 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-135  Page 4 of 32 

 
Financial Account Information 

[Detailed information can be found on pages 14 to 17 of 32] 
 

The District currently deposits all revenue received into the Deposit Checking account.  The 
General Checking account is used as a sole processing account for all District checks and 
electronic payroll.  The Investment Checking account is used for the purchase and redemption of 
US treasury notes and bills and for the transfer of LAIF funds.  The US treasury notes and bills 
are booked at cost. 
 
The LAIF investment account is a pooled money account administered by the State of California.  
Additional information on the LAIF account is provided below in the investment summary report. 
 

Investment Summary  
[Detailed information can be found on pages 18 to 19 of 32] 

 
The investment summary report illustrates the District's investments in US treasury notes and bills 
in addition to the investments held by the Local Agency Investment Fund or LAIF.  The yields for 
the treasury notes and bills are provided for each individual transaction.  The historical annual 
yield for funds invested with LAIF is also provided. 
 
Separate pooled money investment reports prepared by the State of California are maintained by 
the District and available for review. 
 

Monthly Revenue Allocation 
[Detailed information can be found on pages 20 to 22 of 32] 

 
During the month of June 2015 the District received a sum total of $2,455,044.40 in revenues 
from the following categories: 
 A total of $1,707,181.37 was received from 14,770 customers for utility bill payments.  This is 

the total amount of utility bill payments received from water, sewer and recycled services. 
 A total of $4,719.50 was received for construction meter deposits, customer deposits and 

internet fee payments. 
 A total of $607,067.03 was received from miscellaneous water related activities (other than 

utility bill charges).       
 A total of $130,276.50 was received from miscellaneous sewer related activities (other than 

utility bill charges).     
 A total of $5,800.00 was received from miscellaneous recycled related activities (other than 

utility bill charges).    
 

Fiscal Year 2015 Budget Status 
[Detailed information can be found on pages 23 to 32 of 32] 

 
The revenue and expense budget status for the 2015 Fiscal Year is provided for your review.  

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 35 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-135  Page 5 of 32 

Division Budget Amount Current Month Year-To-Date Percentage
Water 13,072,750 714,791 11,592,022 88.67%
Sewer 11,689,000 947,569 10,827,238 92.63%
Recycled Water 433,500 26,269 424,004 97.81%

District Revenue 25,195,250 1,688,629 22,843,264 90.66%

Department Budget Amount Current Month Year-To-Date Percentage
Water Resources 4,883,119 354,352 4,530,186 92.77%
Public works 2,347,764 189,024 2,322,648 98.93%
Administration 2,910,442 230,443 2,611,147 89.72%
Long Term Debt 2,931,425 0 2,931,425 100.00%
Asset Acquisition   0 0 0 0.00%

TOTAL 13,072,750 773,819 12,395,406 94.82%

Department Budget Amount Current Month Year-To-Date Percentage
Treatment 3,702,084 263,533 3,520,688 95.10%
Administration 3,198,649 216,522 2,850,824 89.13%
Environmental Control 957,833 81,412 967,184 100.98%
Long Term Debt 3,830,434 0 3,809,401 99.45%
Asset Acquisition-Palmer 0 0 0 0.00%

TOTAL 11,689,000 561,467 11,148,097 95.37%

Department Budget Amount Current Month Year-To-Date Percentage
Administration 433,500 48,199 428,081 98.75%

TOTAL 433,500 48,199 428,081 98.75%

District Expenses 25,195,250 1,383,485 23,971,584 95.14%

Summary of Recycled Water Budget

As of June 30, 2015 (96% of Budget Cycle)

Summary of Revenue Budget

As of June 30, 2015 (96% of Budget Cycle)

Summary of Water Budget

As of June 30, 2015 (96% of Budget Cycle)

Summary of Sewer Budget

As of June 30, 2015 (96% of Budget Cycle)

	
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 36 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-135  Page 6 of 32 

 
Investment Policy Disclosure 

 
The District is currently compliant with the portfolio of its Investment Policy and State Law. 
 
The District is using Sandy Gage with Merrill Lynch Wealth Management (Bank of America 
Corporation) for Treasury investments.  The District expects to meet its expenditure requirements 
for the next six months. 
 
 

Questions or Comments 
 
If you have any questions about a particular budget account, please do not hesitate to contact the 
Controller directly.  If you need additional information, the members of the Administrative 
Department would be happy to provide you with any detailed information you may desire. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 37 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-135  Page 7 of 32 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 38 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-135  Page 8 of 32 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 39 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-135  Page 9 of 32 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 40 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-135  Page 10 of 32 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 41 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-135  Page 11 of 32 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 42 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-135  Page 12 of 32 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 43 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-135  Page 13 of 32 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 44 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-135  Page 14 of 32 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 45 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-135  Page 15 of 32 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 46 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-135  Page 16 of 32 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 47 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-135  Page 17 of 32 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 48 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-135  Page 18 of 32 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 49 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-135  Page 19 of 32 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 50 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-135  Page 20 of 32 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 51 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-135  Page 21 of 32 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 52 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-135  Page 22 of 32 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 53 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-135  Page 23 of 32 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 54 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-135  Page 24 of 32 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 55 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-135  Page 25 of 32 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 56 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-135  Page 26 of 32 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 57 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-135  Page 27 of 32 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 58 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-135  Page 28 of 32 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 59 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-135  Page 29 of 32 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 60 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-135  Page 30 of 32 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 61 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-135  Page 31 of 32 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 62 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-135  Page 32 of 32 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 63 of 150



 

Workshop Memorandum 15-136

Date: July 7, 2015 

Subject: Annual Posting of Delinquent Accounts to the Property Tax Rolls of 
San Bernardino County and Riverside County 

 
Each year the Yucaipa Valley Water District posts delinquent utility service accounts to the 
property tax rolls for collection.  The property owners have been notified that the District intends 
to place all delinquent charges, fees and penalties to the property tax rolls. 
 
The attached resolutions provide detailed account information and the total delinquent amount for 
each parcel.  
 
An updated list of delinquent accounts will be provided at the board meeting held on July 15, 
2015. 
 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 64 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-136  Page 2 of 7 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-xx 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
ADDING DELINQUENT NON-PAID CHARGES TO THE ANNUAL PROPERTY 

TAXES LEVIED UPON THE PARCELS FOR WHICH THE CHARGES ARE 
DELINQUENT IN SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 

 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Yucaipa Valley Water District has reviewed a report and 
statement of those delinquent unpaid charges for services within the Yucaipa Valley Water District 
which were delinquent and unpaid for sixty (60) days or more on July 15, 2015; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors have decided that said delinquent and unpaid charges are to 
be included in the property tax levied on said property.  
 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Yucaipa Valley Water District does hereby 
resolve, determine and order as follows: 
 
Section 1. That the report of the Yucaipa Valley Water District’s delinquent and unpaid 
charges for service within the District which remain unpaid and delinquent for sixty (60) days or 
more on July 15, 2015, is hereby approved as the list of delinquent parcels. 
 
Section 2. That the unpaid and delinquent charges listed in said report, for the parcel of 
property, are fixed at the amount listed and shall be released administratively upon payment. 
 
Section 3. That the Secretary shall file with the County Auditor of the County of San 
Bernardino, and the Board of Supervisors of San Bernardino County, in the time and manner 
specified by the County Auditor and Board of Supervisors, a copy of such written report with a 
statement endorsed hereon over the signature of the Secretary that such a report has been finally 
adopted and approved by this Board of Directors and that the County Auditor shall enter the 
amount of such charges against the respective lot or parcel of land as it appears on the current 
assessment roll. 
 
Section 4. That the County Tax Collector shall include the amount of charges on bills for taxes 
levied against the respective lot and parcel of land and, thereafter, the amount of such unpaid 
and delinquent charges shall be collected at the same time and in the same manner by the same 
person as, together with and not separately from the general taxes, if any, for the District or the 
County of San Bernardino and shall be delinquent at the same time and thereafter be subject to 
the same delinquency penalties. 
 
Section 5. That any parcel collected through this method of collection remain on the Annual 
Property Tax Roll and charged the monthly sewer service charge annually. 
 
This Resolution is effective immediately upon adoption. 
 
 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 65 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-136  Page 3 of 7 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 15th day of July 2015 
 
  YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

   
  Lonni Granlund,  

President Board of Directors 
   
ATTEST:   

   
Joseph B. Zoba, General Manager   

 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 66 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-136  Page 4 of 7 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 67 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-136  Page 5 of 7 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-xx 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
ADDING DELINQUENT NON-PAID CHARGES TO THE ANNUAL PROPERTY 

TAXES LEVIED UPON THE PARCELS FOR WHICH THE CHARGES ARE 
DELINQUENT IN RIVERSIDE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 

 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Yucaipa Valley Water District has reviewed a report and 
statement of those delinquent unpaid charges for services within the Yucaipa Valley Water District 
which were delinquent and unpaid for sixty (60) days or more on July 15, 2015; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors have decided that said delinquent and unpaid charges are to 
be included in the property tax levied on said property.  
 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Yucaipa Valley Water District does hereby 
resolve, determine and order as follows: 
 
Section 1. That the report of the Yucaipa Valley Water District’s delinquent and unpaid 
charges for service within the District which remain unpaid and delinquent for sixty (60) days or 
more on July 15, 2015, is hereby approved as the list of delinquent parcels. 
 
Section 2. That the unpaid and delinquent charges listed in said report, for the parcel of 
property, are fixed at the amount listed and shall be released administratively upon payment. 
 
Section 3. That the Secretary shall file with the County Auditor of the County of Riverside, 
and the Board of Supervisors of San Bernardino County, in the time and manner specified by the 
County Auditor and Board of Supervisors, a copy of such written report with a statement endorsed 
hereon over the signature of the Secretary that such a report has been finally adopted and 
approved by this Board of Directors and that the County Auditor shall enter the amount of such 
charges against the respective lot or parcel of land as it appears on the current assessment roll. 
 
Section 4. That the County Tax Collector shall include the amount of charges on bills for taxes 
levied against the respective lot and parcel of land and, thereafter, the amount of such unpaid 
and delinquent charges shall be collected at the same time and in the same manner by the same 
person as, together with and not separately from the general taxes, if any, for the District or the 
County of Riverside and shall be delinquent at the same time and thereafter be subject to the 
same delinquency penalties. 
 
Section 5. That any parcel collected through this method of collection remain on the Annual 
Property Tax Roll and charged the monthly sewer service charge annually. 
 
This Resolution is effective immediately upon adoption. 
 
 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 68 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-136  Page 6 of 7 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 15th day of July 2015. 
 
  YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

   
  Lonni Granlund,  

President Board of Directors 
   
ATTEST:   

   
Joseph B. Zoba, General Manager   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 69 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-136  Page 7 of 7 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 70 of 150



 

 

 

Workshop Memorandum 15-137

Date: July 7, 2015 

Subject: Approval of Amendment No. 2 to the Basin Monitoring Program 

 
The Yucaipa Valley Water District has been actively involved in the Nitrogen/TDS Task Force 
since its formation in the 1990’s.  As follow up to the Nitrogen TDS Task Force efforts, a new task 
force was formed in August 2004 consisting of seventeen water and sewer agencies in the Santa 
Ana Watershed to compile and collect monitoring data to evaluate the water quality of the Santa 
Ana River on an annual basis, and the groundwater basins throughout the watershed every three 
years.  The agencies responsible for completing these tasks and the actual tasks were included 
in the RWQCB Basin Plan as a result of the January 2004 Nitrogen and TDS Basin Plan 
Amendment. 
 
On July 10, 2010, the Board of Directors approved Amendment No. 1 to the Basin Monitoring 
Plan Task Force Agreement [Director Memorandum No. 10-048]. 
 
District staff recommends approval of Amendment No. 2 to the Basin Monitoring Program 
Agreement.  This amendment includes the addition of other parties located in the Beaumont 
Management Zone. 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 71 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-137  Page 2 of 16 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 72 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-137  Page 3 of 16 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 73 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-137  Page 4 of 16 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 74 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-137  Page 5 of 16 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 75 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-137  Page 6 of 16 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 76 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-137  Page 7 of 16 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 77 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-137  Page 8 of 16 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 78 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-137  Page 9 of 16 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 79 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-137  Page 10 of 16 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 80 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-137  Page 11 of 16 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 81 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-137  Page 12 of 16 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 82 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-137  Page 13 of 16 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 83 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-137  Page 14 of 16 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 84 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-137  Page 15 of 16 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 85 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-137  Page 16 of 16 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 86 of 150



 

Workshop Memorandum 15-138

Date: July 7, 2015 

Subject: Adoption of Resolution No. 2015-xx Establishing the Appropriation 
Limit for Fiscal Year 2015-16 

 
In 1979, Proposition 4 (the Gann Initiative) was approved adding Article XIII B to the State 
Constitution.  The provisions of this article place limits on the amount of revenue that can be 
appropriated by al entities of government.  This initiative was designed to constrain government 
expenditures by placing an annual limit on revenue and appropriation growth.   
 
In June 1990, Proposition 111 amended Article XIII B, making changes in the base year upon 
which the appropriations limit is based, establishing new cost of living factors and new population 
factors for use by local governments, and increasing appropriations not subject to the limit 
(primarily qualified capital outlay projects).  The financial constraints of Article XIII B apply to State, 
all cities, counties, special districts and all other political subdivisions. 
 
The Yucaipa Valley Water District has completed the computation associated with the 
appropriation limitation for fiscal year 2015-2016 ("FY 2016").  Based on the attached calculation, 
the proposed adjustment to the District's appropriation limit includes an increase of 6.25% for the 
increase in non-residential assessed valuation of new construction and a weighted average 
increase of 1.15% for population change.  These percentages have been used to calculate an 
increase in the appropriation limit from $61,304,399 in FY 2015 to $65,883,838 in FY 2016.  This 
represents an overall increase of 7.47% to the appropriation limit.  The District’s annual 
appropriations are well below this limit. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 87 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-138  Page 2 of 17 

 
 

12770 Second Street, Yucaipa, California 92399 

 
 
 
 

Appropriation Limit for the  
Yucaipa Valley Water District 

 

Fiscal Year 2015-2016 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by: Vicky Elisalda, Controller 
 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 88 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-138  Page 3 of 17 

Overview of Appropriation Limit 
 
 

Introduction 
 
In the 1970s soaring property values in California led to dramatic increases in property taxes, 
prompting a tax revolt that resulted in the passage of Proposition 13 in the June 1978 California 
primary.  Proposition 13 reduced local property taxes by 57% and thereby slashed the revenue 
base for local governments and schools.  Over the years the revenue loss has been made up by 
a varying mix of state funds and new revenue from specialized local fees and taxes, as well as 
by outright local budget cuts. 
 
The California tax revolt did not end with Proposition 13.  Seventeen months later, in November 
1979, voters passed the Proposition 4, known as the Gann Amendment.  Proposition 4 imposed 
a limit on most state and local government expenditures from tax sources.  The limit is calculated 
annually according to a formula based on population and the cost of living.  Under Proposition 4, 
excess revenues must be returned to the taxpayers.   
 
Both Propositions 13 and 4 have been modified in the years since their passage.  While weakened 
by the changes, Propositions 13 and 4 remain constraints on California state and local budgeting, 
and continue to be focal points in the public policy debate about California taxing and spending. 
 
 

Summary of Proposition 4 and Related Voter Initiatives 
 
Modern spending limits in California began in 1979 with the passage of Proposition 4 (Article XIII 
B of the California Constitution).  Also called the Gann Initiative after its chief sponsor, Paul Gann, 
Proposition 4 places an appropriations limit on most spending from tax proceeds.  The limit for 
each year is equal to the prior year's spending with upward adjustments allowed for changes in 
population and the cost of living.  Most state and local government appropriations are subject to 
the limit.  However, the law exempts certain appropriations from the limit including capital outlay, 
debt service and local government subventions.  When the limit is exceeded, Proposition 4 
requires the surplus to be returned to the taxpayers within two years.  Appropriations in the two 
year period can be averaged before becoming subject to the excess revenue provisions of the 
Gann limit.  
 
Voters approved the Gann limit in a November 1979 special election by a 74% margin.  The late 
1970s were a time of surplus state revenues in California, and voter exasperation at the inability 
of the legislature and the governor to agree on a plan to return the surplus to the taxpayers in the 
form of refunds or property tax relief helped fuel the tax revolt that led first to Proposition 13 and 
then to Proposition 4.  With the Gann limit, voters took the matter of spending limits into their own 
hands, and ignored objections that spending limit formulas are an artificial constraint on policy 
making and hamper the government's ability to address citizen needs.  
 
During the early 1980s, increases in population and the consumer price index outpaced the 
growth in state revenue, and the Gann limit was not reached.  However, a surge in state revenues 
in 1987 caused the limit to be breached, and led to the first refund to taxpayers. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 89 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-138  Page 4 of 17 

Voters have modified the Gann limit in a series of initiative measures.  Proposition 99 (1988) and 
Proposition 10 (1998) exempted new tobacco taxes from the Gann limit.  Proposition 98 (1988) 
required public schools to receive a share of revenues exceeding the Gann limit.  That share was 
changed to a flat 50% by Proposition 111 (1990).  Proposition 111 also added three exemptions 
to the Gann limit: capital outlay spending, appropriations supported by increased gas taxes, and 
appropriations resulting from national disasters.  Most significantly, Proposition 111 changed the 
formula used for calculating annual adjustments to the Gann limit.  Under Proposition 111, the 
population factor is based on a weighted average of population and K-14 school enrollment 
growth (instead of population only), and the cost of living factor is based solely on California per-
capita personal income growth (and no longer takes into account the Consumer Price Index). 
 
The changes to the Gann limit formula under Proposition 111 substantially raised the Gann limit, 
making it less likely that the limit will be reached in the future.  Many observers believe that in its 
current weakened state the Gann limit has ceased to be a meaningful constraint on state 
spending. 
 
 

How the Appropriations Limit Works 
 
Which Revenues Are Subject to Limit?  
 
Article XIII B places a limit on appropriations from most, but not all, government revenue sources.  
The limit applies to appropriations from proceeds of taxes from both the general fund and special 
funds of government entities.  Proceeds of taxes include tax revenues, interest earnings on 
invested tax revenues, and any revenues collected by a regulatory license fee or user charge in 
excess of the amount needed to cover the cost of providing the regulation, product, or service.   
 
Which Appropriations Are Subject to Limit?  
 
Appropriations for almost all government functions are subject to limitation under Article XIII B.  
However, there are some important exceptions.  The original Proposition 4 provided that the 
following appropriations are not limited, even if made from proceeds of taxes:  
 Subventions from the state to local governments and schools, the use of which is unrestricted 

(these subventions are not subject to the state's limit, but instead are counted as subject to 
the local entity's limit);  

 Appropriations to pay for costs of complying with federal laws and court mandates;  
 Payments for interest and redemption charges on pre-existing (i.e., pre-Proposition 4) or 

voter-approved bonded indebtedness;  
 Withdrawals from previously appropriated reserve funds; and  
 Refunds of taxes.  
 
Proposition 111 excluded capital outlay from the appropriations limit.  This change reflects the 
fact that while capital outlay appropriations are made during a single budget year, they reflect 
long-term investments that are utilized over a number of years.  Appropriations directly related to 
an emergency, such as a fire, earthquake, or other natural disaster, were also excluded from the 
limit by Proposition 111.  No reduction in future limits is required for appropriations made for these 
emergency purposes.  
 
The "Base Year" Limit.  
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 90 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-138  Page 5 of 17 

The first year that limits were in effect was FY 1980-81.  The base year for determining the 
appropriations limit in FY 1980-81 was FY 1978-79.  Actual appropriations in the FY 1978-79 
fiscal year that had been financed by the proceeds of taxes were the starting point.  Appropriations 
not subject to limitation were subtracted from that figure and this became the "base year" level of 
appropriations for computing all subsequent years' limits.  Proposition 111 updated the base year 
for calculating the limit for each government entity to FY 1986-87.  For fiscal years beginning with 
FY 1990-91, the limit for each entity is the FY 1986-87 limit adjusted annually as specified by 
Article XIII B as amended by Proposition 111.  
 
Annual Adjustments to the Limit.  
 
The appropriations limit for each year since FY 1980-81 is calculated by adjusting the base year 
limit for changes in the cost-of-living and population.  Proposition 111, passed by the voters in 
June 1990, revised each of the adjustment factors.  Specifically, annual adjustments to limits, 
either upward or downward, are made as follows:  
 Cost-of-Living.   

o State and schools are adjusted by the change in California per capita personal 
income.   

o Local agencies are adjusted by the change in California per capita personal 
income or the change in the local property tax roll due to the addition of new 
nonresidential construction.  

 Population.   
o The State uses a population factor calculated by adding: (a) the change in the 

state's total population weighted by the percent of the budget spent on non-
educational programs, and (b) the change in average daily attendance (ADA) for 
K-14 education weighted by the percentage of the budget spent on K-14 education.  

o Local agencies use a population factor that is the percentage change in the 
jurisdiction or in the county in which the jurisdiction is located.  Special districts 
located in two or more counties may use the change in the county in which the 
district has the highest assessed valuation.  

o Counties. The population change for counties can be calculated by using one of 
three methods: (a) the percentage change in population within the county; (b) the 
percentage change in population for both the county itself and contiguous counties; 
or (c) the percentage change in population within the incorporated portion of the 
county.   

o K-14 Schools use the change in population is the percentage change in average 
daily attendance.  

 Program Transfers.  Limits of governmental entities are modified to reflect transfers of 
financial responsibility from one level of government to another.  The limit of the new 
service provider is increased by the amount the former service provider's limit is reduced.   

 Funding Transfers.  Adjustments either upward or downward are made to account for 
transfers of program funding sources, for example from tax revenues (subject to limit) to 
fees (not subject to limit).  

 
The level of appropriations actually made by a government entity in any year does not have any 
bearing on the calculation of the appropriations limit for the subsequent years.  Each year's limit 
is computed based on the prior year's limit, not the prior year's appropriations.  
 
If the governing body actually appropriates less money than what would be permitted by the limit, 
it has "room" under its limit, and the limit will be further adjusted the following year for cost-of-

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 91 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-138  Page 6 of 17 

living and population changes.  A government entity does not "lose" room under its limit for the 
future by appropriating less than the maximum permitted in any year.  
 
Appropriations Permitted in Excess of the Limit.  
 
Article XIII B sets forth two circumstances under which governments may make appropriations in 
excess of their limits:  
 Emergency.  Appropriations for declared emergencies do not count towards and may be 

made in excess of the limit.  Proposition 111 removed the requirement that the limits for 
future years must be reduced over a three-year period so that there would be no total 
increase in allowable appropriations.  

 Voter Approval.  Article XIII B permits voters of a jurisdiction to authorize an increase in 
the appropriations limit.  However, no voter-approved increase may be in effect for more 
than four years.  At the end of the four-year period, either the voters must approve another 
increase or the limit must return to the level it would otherwise have been.  

 
When Revenues Exceed the Appropriations Limit.  
 
A government entity may receive revenues during a fiscal year that exceed its appropriations limit.  
Proposition 111 allows governments to average appropriations over a two year period before 
becoming subject to the excess revenue provisions of Article XIII B.  In other words, a government 
entity can offset appropriations that exceeds its appropriations limit in one year of a two-year 
period by appropriating less than the limit in the other year.  If, after taking this two year averaging 
into account, authority to appropriate is not provided by either an emergency declaration or voter 
approval, Article XIII B as amended by Propositions 98 and 111 sets forth a process for disposing 
of the excess State revenues:  
 Education Programs. After the two-year averaging period, 50% of any excess revenues 

are transferred to the State School Fund for elementary, secondary and community 
college education.  A portion of this excess revenue (25%) may effectively be built into the 
base used to calculate future funding required by Proposition 98 if the excess funds are 
used for a specified purpose.  The transfer to education is not required if the state's 
average expenditure per student and average class size is equal to or exceeds that of the 
ten states with the best performance in these areas.  

 Return of Excess. The 50% of excess revenues remaining after the transfer to education 
must be returned to taxpayers within the following two years.  The return can be made 
through a reduction in the tax rate or as a fee reduction. 

 
Sources: 
 “Government Appropriations Limit: Article XIII B of the Constitution.”  In: Revenue and 

Taxation Reference Book 2003. Sacramento: Assembly Revenue and Taxation 
Committee, Chapter 5, January 2004, pp. 150-7. 

 “Tax and Expenditure Limitation in California: Proposition 13 & Proposition 4”, Institute of 
Governmental Studies, University of California at Berkeley 
(http://www.igs.berkeley.edu/library/htTaxSpendLimits2003.html) 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 92 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-138  Page 7 of 17 

Calculation of Appropriation Limitation 
 
 

Appropriation Limit Calculation – Part I 
 

Greater of California per capita income or 
increase in non-residential assessed valuation   
of new construction  1.0625 
 
Population percentage change factor x 1.0115 
 
Ratio of change  1.0747 
 
 

Appropriation Limit Calculation – Part II 
 
Ratio of change  1.0747 
 
Prior year appropriation limit (2014-2015) x $61,304,399 
 
Current year appropriation (2015-2016)  $65,883,838 

 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 93 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-138  Page 8 of 17 

Computation of Appropriation Limitation 
 
 

Adjustment Factors 
 
Cost of Living Price Factor:  The computation of the appropriation limitation involves the greater 
of the two cost of living factors: 
 

Percentage change in  
per capita income1 

 Percentage change in local 
assessment roll due to addition of 
non-residential new construction2 

 or  
3.82%  6.25% 

 
Population:  The computation of the appropriation limitation involves the greater of the following 
factors for each county: 
 

Growth within  
San Bernardino County3 

 Growth within the  
City of Yucaipa 

 or  
1.09%  0.65% 

   
Growth within  

Riverside County4 
 Growth within the  

City of Calimesa 
  or  

1.29%  1.56% 
 
The underlined factors above were used in calculating the District's appropriation limit for the fiscal 
year 2014-2015.  The resolution adopted by the Board of Directors will specify these factors. 

                                            
1 State of California, Department of Finance correspondence dated May 2015 (Attachment A) 
2 Ms. Linda Santillano, Auditor-Controller Office, Property Tax Section, September 2014 (909) 386-8829 
3 State of California, Department of Finance correspondence dated May 2015 (Attachment B-SB) 
4 State of California, Department of Finance correspondence dated May 2015(Attachment B-RIV) 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 94 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-138  Page 9 of 17 

Procedure for Administering  
Revenue and Taxation Code Section 2228(a)  

 
 
The Revenue and Taxation Code, Section 2228(a) requires the following: 
 
If a special district is located within a single county or within more than one city or any combination 
of cities and incorporated area within a single county, the annual percentage change in population 
for the district shall be that established for the county or the weighted average of the percentage 
change of each city and the unincorporated area. 
 
If a special district is located within more than one county, the annual percentage change in 
population for the district shall be the weighted average of the percentage change of each county 
or city or unincorporated area within the district or any combination provided that the areas 
selected are mutually exclusive. 
 
The State of California, Department of Finance has specified that the weights applied shall be the 
relative share of the assessed valuation (A.V.) of the district in each local agency. 
 
Population Percentage Change Factor: 
 

 
 

Local Agency 

Percentage 
Population 

Change 

 
 
 

 
Assessed 
Valuation 

 
 

=

 
Percentage 

Change x A.V. 
      

San Bernardino County 1.09% x 5,489,830,106 = 59,839,148 
      

Riverside County 1.56% x 877,487,738 = 13,688,809 
   _________________  _________________

Total District   6,367,317,844  73,527,957 
 
 
Weighted Average Percent Change: 
 

Total District (Percentage Change x A.V.) 
=

73,527,957 
= 0.011548

Total District Assessed Valuation 6,367,317,844 
 
 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 95 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-138  Page 10 of 17 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachments 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 96 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-138  Page 11 of 17 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 97 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-138  Page 12 of 17 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 98 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-138  Page 13 of 17 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 99 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-138  Page 14 of 17 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 100 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-138  Page 15 of 17 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 101 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-138  Page 16 of 17 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 102 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-138  Page 17 of 17 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 103 of 150



 

Workshop Memorandum 15-139

Date: July 7, 2015 

Subject: Professional Engineering Services Related to the Preparation of a Title 
22 Report for the Recharge of Recycled Water at the Wilson Creek 
Spreading Basins 

 
On August 20, 2008, the Board of Directors adopted Resolution No. 11-2008 establishing a 
strategic plan for the management, integration and preservation of water resources.  A 
fundamental component of the Districts overall strategic plan is to increase the amount of recycled 
water used throughout the sphere of influence of the Yucaipa Valley Water District.   
 
The Yucaipa Valley Water District has been actively recharging imported water at the Wilson 
Creek Spreading Basins for several years. Since 2003, the District has recharged nearly 16,000 
acre feet of imported water at this location.  This recharge strategy has resulted in increased water 
stored in the Gateway Groundwater Basin, which is the groundwater basin located immediately 
below the Wilson Creek recharge facilities.  To increase the amount of water recharged at this 
location, the Board of Directors approved a series of technical studies that are required by the 
State of California prior to the recharge of recycled water into the groundwater supply [Director 
Memorandum No. 15-010].  
A computer model has 
been designed to predict 
the travel time and 
underflow characteristics 
for water added to the 
Wilson Creek Spreading 
Basins.   
 
The District staff now has 
sufficient data and studies 
completed to prepare the 
Title 22 Engineering 
Report the recharge of 
recycled water.  The 
specific deliverables required for the Title 22 Engineering Report are described in the attached 
proposals from DDB Engineering/Separation Processes, Geoscience, and RMC Water and 
Environment.  Cost estimates to perform the work are below: 
 

Consultant  
Separation Processes Inc / DDB Engineering $42,860.00
GeoScience Pending
RMC Water and Environment $106,620.00

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 104 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-139  Page 2 of 21 

 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 105 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-139  Page 3 of 21 

 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 106 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-139  Page 4 of 21 

 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 107 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-139  Page 5 of 21 

 

 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 108 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-139  Page 6 of 21 

 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 109 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-139  Page 7 of 21 

 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 110 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-139  Page 8 of 21 

 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 111 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-139  Page 9 of 21 

 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 112 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-139  Page 10 of 21 

 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 113 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-139  Page 11 of 21 

 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 114 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-139  Page 12 of 21 

 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 115 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-139  Page 13 of 21 

 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 116 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-139  Page 14 of 21 

 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 117 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-139  Page 15 of 21 

 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 118 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-139  Page 16 of 21 

 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 119 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-139  Page 17 of 21 

 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 120 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-139  Page 18 of 21 

 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 121 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-139  Page 19 of 21 

 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 122 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-139  Page 20 of 21 

 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 123 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-139  Page 21 of 21 

 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 124 of 150



 

Workshop Memorandum 15-140

Date: July 7, 2015 

Subject: Prepayment of the Annual Unfunded Accrued Liability Contribution 
for the CalPERS Retirement Program 

 
On June 30, 2015, CalPERS issued a notice regarding the interest amounts associated with 
unfunded liability contributions for pooler retirement plans.  Beginning with Fiscal year 2015-16, 
CalPERS will allow only the unfunded liability and side fund portion to be prepaid.  Employers will 
have two payment options: annual lump-sum or a monthly payment. 
 
The annual lump sum prepayment option is $331,686 versus the monthly payment amount 
totaling $343,899 this fiscal year.  The District staff recommends making the lump sum 
prepayment of $331,686 prior to the August 1st deadline.  Additionally, the District staff will be 
reviewing financing options to pay the full outstanding side fund liability of approximately 
$1,318,0631. 

 
                                            
1 Plan’s side fund balance was $1,318,063 as of June 30, 2013. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 125 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-140  Page 2 of 4 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 126 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-140  Page 3 of 4 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 127 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-140  Page 4 of 4 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 128 of 150



 

Workshop Memorandum 15-141

Date: July 7, 2015 

Subject: Overview of a Public Education and Outreach Program and the Draft 
Request for Proposals 

 
The Board of Directors requested the development of a conceptual scope of services document 
for professional public relations services related to specific District projects and activities.  The 
attached draft RFP is currently being refined to include the projects and programs that will be part 
of the public outreach effort by the District.   
 
The draft RFP currently focuses on the following priorities for public outreach: 

 Effectively communicate with all water district stakeholders to build confidence in the 
Districts projects and programs. 

 Position the District as a leader in the region for water quality and water reliability.  

 Provide information about the drinking water, recycled water, sewer collection and brine 
disposal operations of the District. 

 Describe the efforts taken to maximize financial and capital resources among industry 
professionals and customers. 

 Specific priorities for public education and customer contact will focus on: 

o The expansion of the District’s recycled water program including the recharge of 
recycled water and the potential for front yard and rear yard irrigation with 
recycled water in existing homes. 

o The loss of revenue associated with the State Water Resources Control Board 
Emergency Drought Regulations. 

o The results of an ongoing rate analysis that may change the District’s drinking 
water rates from a tiered rate structure to a fixed unit cost rate structure.  This 
may involve the preparation of a Proposition 218 notice. 

o The implementation of a Septic Tank Elimination Program to comply with the 
Regional Water Quality Control Board Maximum Benefit Objectives for the 
Yucaipa, San Timoteo and Beaumont Basins to protect groundwater quality. 

 
The purpose of this agenda item is to discuss the draft Request for Proposals for public relations 
services and to determine the goals and objectives of the Board of Directors for the public 
outreach effort. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 129 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-141  Page 2 of 14 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 130 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-141  Page 3 of 14 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 131 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-141  Page 4 of 14 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 132 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-141  Page 5 of 14 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 133 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-141  Page 6 of 14 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 134 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-141  Page 7 of 14 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 135 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-141  Page 8 of 14 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 136 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-141  Page 9 of 14 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 137 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-141  Page 10 of 14 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 138 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-141  Page 11 of 14 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 139 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-141  Page 12 of 14 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 140 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-141  Page 13 of 14 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 141 of 150



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-141  Page 14 of 14 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 142 of 150



 

 

Director Comments 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 143 of 150



June 2014 
 

 
 

FACTS ABOUT THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
 

Service Area Size: 40 square miles (sphere of influence is 68 square miles) 
 
Elevation Change: 3,140 foot elevation change (from 2,044 to 5,184 feet) 
 
Number of Employees: 5 elected board members 

57 full time employees 
 
Operating Budget: Water Division - $13,072,750  
 Sewer Division - $11,689,000 
 Recycled Water Division - $433,500 
 Total Annual Budget - $25,195,250 
 
Number of Services: 12,206 water connections serving 16,843 units 

13,492 sewer connections serving 20,312 units 
62 recycled water connections 

 
Water System: 215 miles of drinking water pipelines 

27 reservoirs - 34 million gallons of storage capacity 
18 pressure zones 
12,000 ac-ft annual water demand (3.9 billion gallons) 
Two water filtration facilities: 

- 1 mgd at Oak Glen Surface Water Filtration Facility 
- 12 mgd at Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility 

 
Sewer System: 8.0 million gallon treatment capacity - current flow at 4.0 mgd 

205 miles of sewer mainlines 
5 sewer lift stations 
4,500 ac-ft annual recycled water prod. (1.46 billion gallons) 

 
Recycled Water: 22 miles of recycled water pipelines 

5 reservoirs - 12 million gallons of storage 
1,200 ac-ft annual recycled demand (0.4 billion gallons) 

 
Brine Disposal:  2.2 million gallon desalination facility at sewer treatment plant 

1.108 million gallons of Inland Empire Brine Line capacity 
0.295 million gallons of treatment capacity in Orange County

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 144 of 150



June 2014 
 

 

 
  

THE MEASUREMENT OF WATER PURITY 
 

One part per hundred is generally represented by the percent (%).  
This is equivalent to about fifteen minutes out of one day. 

 
One part per thousand denotes one part per 1000 parts.  

This is equivalent to about one and a half minutes out of one day. 
 
One part per million (ppm) denotes one part per 1,000,000 parts.  

This is equivalent to about 32 seconds out of a year. 
 
One part per billion (ppb) denotes one part per 1,000,000,000 parts.   

This is equivalent to about three seconds out of a century. 
 
One part per trillion (ppt) denotes one part per 1,000,000,000,000 parts. 

This is equivalent to about three seconds out of every hundred thousand years. 
 
One part per quadrillion (ppq) denotes one part per 1,000,000,000,000,000 parts.  

This is equivalent to about two and a half minutes out of the age of the Earth (4.5 
billion years).  

 

 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 145 of 150



June 2014 
 

 
  

GLOSSARY OF COMMONLY USED TERMS 
 
Every profession has specialized terms which generally evolve to facilitate communication between individuals.  
The routine use of these terms tends to exclude those who are unfamiliar with the particular specialized language 
of the group.  Sometimes jargon can create communication cause difficulties where professionals in related fields 
use different terms for the same phenomena. 

Below are commonly used water terms and abbreviations with commonly used definitions.  If there is any 
discrepancy in definitions, the District's Regulations Governing Water Service is the final and binding definition.  

 

Acre Foot of Water - The volume of water (325,850 gallons, or 43,560 cubic feet) that would cover an area of 
one acre to a depth of 1 foot.  

Activated Sludge Process – A secondary biological sewer treatment process where bacteria reproduce at a 
high rate with the introduction of excess air or oxygen, and consume dissolved nutrients in the wastewater. 

Annual Water Quality Report - The document is prepared annually and provides information on water quality, 
constituents in the water, compliance with drinking water standards and educational material on tap water.  It is 
also referred to as a Consumer Confidence Report (CCR).  

Aquifer - The natural underground area with layers of porous, water-bearing materials (sand, gravel) capable of 
yielding a supply of water; see Groundwater basin.  

Backflow - The reversal of water's normal direction of flow.  When water passes through a water meter into a 
home or business it should not reverse flow back into the water mainline.  

Best Management Practices (BMPs) - Methods or techniques found to be the most effective and practical 
means in achieving an objective.  Often used in the context of water conservation.  

Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD) – The amount of oxygen used when organic matter undergoes 
decomposition by microorganisms.  Testing for BOD is done to assess the amount of organic matter in water. 

Biosolids – Biosolids are nutrient rich organic and highly treated solid materials produced by the sewer treatment 
process.  This high-quality product can be used as a soil amendment on farm land or further processed as an 
earth-like product for commercial and home gardens to improve and maintain fertile soil and stimulate plant 
growth. 

Catch Basin – A chamber usually built at the curb line of a street, which conveys surface water for discharge 
into a storm sewer. 

Capital Improvement Program (CIP) – Projects for repair, rehabilitation, and replacement of assets.  Also 
includes treatment improvements, additional capacity, and projects for the support facilities. 

Collector Sewer – The first element of a wastewater collection system used to collect and carry wastewater 
from one or more building sewer laterals to a main sewer. 

Coliform Bacteria – A group of bacteria found in the intestines of humans and other animals, but also 
occasionally found elsewhere and is generally used as an indicator of sewage pollution.   

Combined Sewer Overflow – The portion of flow from a combined sewer system, which discharges into a water 
body from an outfall located upstream of a wastewater treatment plant, usually during wet weather conditions. 

Combined Sewer System– Generally older sewer systems designed to convey both sewage and storm water 
into one pipe to a wastewater treatment plant. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 146 of 150



June 2014 
 

Conjunctive Use - The coordinated management of surface water and groundwater supplies to maximize the 
yield of the overall water resource.  Active conjunctive use uses artificial recharge, where surface water is 
intentionally percolated or injected into aquifers for later use.  Passive conjunctive use is to simply rely on surface 
water in wet years and use groundwater in dry years. 

Consumer Confidence Report (CCR) - see Annual Water Quality Report.  

Cross-Connection - The actual or potential connection between a potable water supply and a non-potable 
source, where it is possible for a contaminant to enter the drinking water supply. 

Disinfection By-Products (DBPs) - The category of compounds formed when disinfectants in water systems 
react with natural organic matter present in the source water supplies.  Different disinfectants produce different 
types or amounts of disinfection byproducts. Disinfection byproducts for which regulations have been established 
have been identified in drinking water, including trihalomethanes, haloacetic acids, bromate, and chlorite 

Drought - a period of below average rainfall causing water supply shortages.  

Dry Weather Flow – Flow in a sanitary sewer during periods of dry weather in which the sanitary sewer is under 
minimum influence of inflow and infiltration. 

Fire Flow - The ability to have a sufficient quantity of water available to the distribution system to be delivered 
through fire hydrants or private fire sprinkler systems.  

Gallons per Capita per Day (GPCD) - A measurement of the average number of gallons of water use by the 
number of people served each day in a water system. The calculation is made by dividing the total gallons of 
water used each day by the total number of people using the water system.  

Groundwater Basin - An underground body of water or aquifer defined by physical boundaries.  

Groundwater Recharge - The process of placing water in an aquifer.  Can be a naturally occurring process or 
artificially enhanced.  

Hard Water - Water having a high concentration of minerals, typically calcium and magnesium ions.  

Hydrologic Cycle - The process of evaporation of water into the air and its return to earth in the form of 
precipitation (rain or snow).  This process also includes transpiration from plants, percolation into the ground, 
groundwater movement, and runoff into rivers, streams and the ocean; see Water cycle.  

Infiltration – Water other than sewage that enters a sewer system and/or building laterals from the ground 
through defective pipes, pipe joints, connections, or manholes.  Infiltration does not include inflow.  See Inflow. 

Inflow - Water other than sewage that enters a sewer system and building sewer from sources such as roof 
vents, yard drains, area drains, foundation drains, drains from springs and swampy areas, manhole covers, cross 
connections between storm drains and sanitary sewers, catch basins, cooling towers, storm waters, surface 
runoff, street wash waters, or drainage.  Inflow does not include infiltration.  See Infiltration. 

Inflow / Infiltration (I/I) – The total quantity of water from both inflow and infiltration. 

Mains, Distribution - A network of pipelines that delivers water (drinking water or recycled water) from 
transmission mains to residential and commercial properties, usually pipe diameters of 4" to 16".  

Mains, Transmission - A system of pipelines that deliver water (drinking water or recycled water) from a source 
of supply the distribution mains, usually pipe diameters of greater than 16".  

Meter - A device capable of measuring, in either gallons or cubic feet, a quantity of water delivered by the District 
to a service connection.  

Overdraft - The pumping of water from a groundwater basin or aquifer in excess of the supply flowing into the 
basin. This pumping results in a depletion of the groundwater in the basin which has a net effect of lowering the 
levels of water in the aquifer.  

Peak Flow – The maximum flow that occurs over a specific length of time (e.g., daily, hourly, instantaneously). 

Pipeline - Connected piping that carries water, oil or other liquids.  See Mains, Distribution and Mains, 
Transmission. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 147 of 150



June 2014 
 

Point of Responsibility, Metered Service - The connection point at the outlet side of a water meter where a 
landowner's responsibility for all conditions, maintenance, repairs, use and replacement of water service facilities 
begins, and the District's responsibility ends.  

Potable Water - Water that is used for human consumption and regulated by the California Department of Public 
Health.  

Pressure Reducing Valve - A device used to reduce the pressure in a domestic water system when the water 
pressure exceeds desirable levels.  

Pump Station - A drinking water or recycled water facility where pumps are used to push water up to a higher 
elevation or different location.  

Reservoir - A water storage facility where water is stored to be used at a later time for peak demands or 
emergencies such as fire suppression.  Drinking water and recycled water systems will typically use concrete or 
steel reservoirs.  The State Water Project system considers lakes, such as Shasta Lake and Folsom Lake to be 
water storage reservoirs. 

Runoff - Water that travels downward over the earth's surface due to the force of gravity.  It includes water 
running in streams as well as over land.  

Sanitary Sewer System - Sewer collection system designed to carry sewage, consisting of domestic, 
commercial, and industrial wastewater. This type of system is not designed nor intended to carry water from 
rainfall, snowmelt, or groundwater sources.  See Combined Sewer System. 

Sanitary Sewer Overflow – Overflow from a sanitary sewer system caused when total wastewater flow exceeds 
the capacity of the system.  See Combined Sewer Overflow. 

Santa Ana River Interceptor (SARI) Line – A regional brine line designed to convey 30 million gallons per day 
of non-reclaimable wastewater from the upper Santa Ana River basin to the sewer treatment plant operated by 
Orange County Sanitation District. 

Secondary Treatment – Biological sewer treatment, particularly the activated-sludge process, where bacteria 
and other microorganisms consume dissolved nutrients in wastewater. 

Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) - A computerized system which provides the ability to 
remotely monitor and control water system facilities such as reservoirs, pumps and other elements of water 
delivery.  

Service Connection - The water piping system connecting a customer's system with a District water main 
beginning at the outlet side of the point of responsibility, including all plumbing and equipment located on a parcel 
required for the District's provision of water service to that parcel.  

Sludge – Untreated solid material created by the treatment of sewage. 

Smart Irrigation Controller - A device that automatically adjusts the time and frequency which water is applied 
to landscaping based on real-time weather such as rainfall, wind, temperature and humidity.  

Special District - A political subdivision of a state established to provide a public services, such as water supply 
or sanitation, within a specific geographic area.   

Surface Water - Water found in lakes, streams, rivers, oceans or reservoirs behind dams.  

Total Suspended Solids (TSS) – The amount of solids floating and in suspension in water or sewage. 

Transpiration - The process by which water vapor is released into the atmosphere by living plants.  

Trickling Filter – A biological secondary treatment process in which bacteria and other microorganisms, growing 
as slime on the surface of rocks or plastic media, consume nutrients in primary treated sewage as it trickles over 
them. 

Underground Service Alert (USA) - A free service that notifies utilities such as water, telephone, cable and 
sewer companies of pending excavations within the area (dial 8-1-1 at least 2 working days before you dig).  

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 148 of 150



June 2014 
 

Urban Runoff - Water from city streets and domestic properties that typically carries pollutants into the storm 
drains, rivers, lakes, and oceans. 

Valve - A device that regulates, directs or controls the flow of water by opening, closing or partially obstructing 
various passageways.  

Wastewater – Any water that enters the sanitary sewer. 

Water Banking - The practice of actively storing or exchanging in-lieu surface water supplies in available 
groundwater basin storage space for later extraction and use by the storing party or for sale or exchange to a 
third party.  Water may be banked as an independent operation or as part of a conjunctive use program.  

Water cycle - The continuous movement water from the earth's surface to the atmosphere and back again; see 
Hydrologic cycle.  

Water Pressure - Pressure created by the weight and elevation of water and/or generated by pumps that deliver 
water to the tap.  

Water Service Line - The pipeline that delivers potable water to a residence or business from the District's water 
system.  Typically the water service line is a 1” to 1½” diameter pipe for residential properties.  

Watershed - A region or land area that contributes to the drainage or catchment area above a specific point on 
a stream or river.  

Water Table - The upper surface of the zone of saturation of groundwater in an unconfined aquifer.  

Water Transfer - A transaction, in which a holder of a water right or entitlement voluntarily sells/exchanges to a 
willing buyer the right to use all or a portion of the water under that water right or entitlement.  

Water Well - A hole drilled into the ground to tap an underground water aquifer.  

Wetlands - Lands which are fully saturated or under water at least part of the year, like seasonal vernal pools 
or swamps.  

Wet Weather Flow – Dry weather flow combined with stormwater introduced into a combined sewer system, 
and dry weather flow combined with infiltration/inflow into a separate sewer system. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 149 of 150



June 2014 
 

 
  

COMMONLY USED ABBREVIATIONS 
 

AQMD Air Quality Management District 

BOD Biochemical Oxygen Demand 

CARB California Air Resources Board 

CCTV Closed Circuit Television 

CWA Clean Water Act 

EIR Environmental Impact Report 

EPA U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 

FOG Fats, Oils, and Grease 

GPD Gallons per day 

MGD Million gallons per day 

O & M Operations and Maintenance 

OSHA Occupational Safety and Health Administration  

POTW Publicly Owned Treatment Works 

PPM Parts per million 

RWQCB Regional Water Quality Control Board  

SARI Santa Ana River Inceptor 

SAWPA Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority 

SBVMWD San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District 

SCADA Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition system 

SSMP Sanitary Sewer Management Plan 

SSO Sanitary Sewer Overflow 

SWRCB State Water Resources Control Board  

TDS Total Dissolved Solids 

TMDL Total Maximum Daily Load 

TSS Total Suspended Solids 

WDR Waste Discharge Requirements 

YVWD Yucaipa Valley Water District 

Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop - July 7, 2015 - Page 150 of 150




